

TAROT OF SACRED KINGDOMS

Created by Earth Moon Magick Illustrations: Florian Bernard Writings: Jennifer Agostini All rights reserved. No part of this tarot deck may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, including photocopying, recording, or by any information storage and retrieval system, without permission in writing from the creator EarthcMoon Magick LLC. This tarot deck, including all its illustrations, designs, and written content, is the sole property of Earth Moon Magic LLC. It is protected by international copyright laws and treaties. Unauthorized copying or distribution of this tarot deck or any portion of it is strictly prohibited under the copyright of MaLune Cherie

The tarot deck and its accompanying guidebook are intended for personal use and spiritual exploration. The interpretations and insights provided in this deck are the result of the user's personal understanding of the Tarot and should be used for guidance and entertainment purposes only. The creator makes no claims of absolute accuracy or guarantees of specific outcomes resulting from the use of this tarot deck.

While every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy and reliability of the information and interpretations contained in this tarot deck, the user assumes no responsibility for any errors or omissions, or for the misuse or misinterpretation of the content by any individual or entity. The names, logos, and trademarks mentioned in this tarot deck are the property of their respective owners and are used for identification purposes only. Their inclusion does not imply any endorsement, sponsorship, or affiliation with this tarot deck

For permissions, inquiries, or any other related matters, please contact: Earth Moon Magick LLC. earthmoonmagick[AT]gmail.com Published in 2023

WE HAVE A FREE MEDITATION FOR YOU

Scan the QR Code to receive the meditation in your email



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Introduction	1
Spreads	4
Major Arcana	6
0. The Fool	7
I. The Magician	
II. The High Priestess	10
III. The Empress	
Iv. The Emperor	
V. The Hierophant	
VI. The Lovers	
VII. The Chariot	20
VIII. Strength	21
IX. The Hermit	
X. The Wheel Of Fortune	25
XI. Justice	
XII. The Hanged Man	28
XIII. Death	30
XIV. Temperance	32
XV. The Devil	34
XVI. The Tower	36
XVII. The Star	37
XVIII. The Moon	38
XIX. The Sun	40
XX. Judgment	42
YYI The World	44

Minor Arcana	46
Wands	47
Ace Of Wands	48
Two Of Wands	50
Three Of Wands	52
Four Of Wands	54
Five Of Wands	56
Six Of Wands	58
Seven Of Wands	60
Eight Of Wands	61
Nine Of Wands	63
Ten Of Wands	65
Page Of Wands	67
Knight Of Wands	69
Queen Of Wands	71
King Of Wands	73
Cups	75
Ace Of Cups	76
Two Of Cups	77
Three Of Cups	78
Four Of Cups	79
Five Of Cups	81
Six Of Cups	83
Seven Of Cups	85
Eight Of Cups	87
Nine Of Cups	89
Ten Of Cups	91
Page Of Cups	93
Knight Of Cups	94
Queen Of Cups	96

	King Of Cups	97
Swo	ords	98
	Ace Of Swords	
	Two Of Swords	.101
	Three Of Swords	.103
	Four Of Swords	.105
	Five Of Swords	. 107
	Six Of Swords	. 109
	Seven Of Swords	.110
	Eight Of Swords	.111
	Nine Of Swords	113
	Ten Of Swords	115
	Page Of Swords	117
	Knight Of Swords	118
	Queen Of Swords	120
	King Of Swords	122
Per	ntacles	124
	Ace Of Pentacles	125
	Two Of Pentacles	127
	Three Of Pentacles	129
	Four Of Pentacles	131
	Five Of Pentacles	133
	Six Of Pentacles	135
	Seven Of Pentacles	136
	Eight Of Pentacles	138
	Nine Of Pentacles	
	Ten Of Pentacles	
	Page Of Pentacles	
	Knight Of Pentacles	
	Oueen Of Pentacles	147

King Of Pentacles.	149
Special Cards	151
The Phoenix	152
The Celestial Weaver	153

INTRODUCTION

We hope you are enjoying the magic of what's currently resting in the palm of your hands: *Tarot of the Sacred Kingdoms*. We are Jenn and Flo, and we are the founders of this publishing company, Earth Moon Magick. We've been supporting artists and writers from around the globe, collaborating with them to get their decks out into the world. It's been an astonishing and life-changing journey. Recently, something pulled at our heart strings, our intuitions guiding us to step into the artistic creation for one special endeavour, *Tarot of the Sacred Kingdoms*.

This was made with love and intention, like all tarot and oracle decks. We've dedicated ourselves to co-creating this little piece of magick that you now hold in your hands. Flo's eye for design and Jenn's talent with words couldn't be bypassed.

As Flo designed the cards, he did his best to expand from the traditional way of assembling tarot while still keeping the integrity of the overall message for each card. Jenn kept the writing simple and understandable, while ensuring it appropriately reflected the unique design Flo created for each card. This is our first co-creation, and we kept you in mind the whole time. Our dedication to this deck was to offer you with the greatest experience we could. You are the most significant aspect of this deck, because without you, this project wouldn't be possible. You are the reason this was created. So, thank you for being here and receiving the gift we made for you.

We would have never done this without you.

Now, because this deck is all about *YOU*, so are the suggested card spreads. You are welcome to use any spread you wish, of course. However, the proposed spreads below were created specifically for this deck so that you could enjoy the fruits of these messages to their fullest.

All the cards speak directly to you in the present moment. They tell you about yourself, what may be present, opportunities for growth, and guidance for transformation. This is your opportunity to witness yourself through many different lenses. Our intention is simply to support you in knowing yourself better.

The spread options are on the following pages. We hope you receive as much from this deck as we have from the process of creation.

With so much love and gratitude, Jennifer and Florian

SPREADS

Place the cards in the way you're intuitively called to.

Mind, body, spirit.

- 1. What my body is saying
- 2. What my mind is saying
- 3. What my Spirit is saying

Timeline

- 1. Past self
- 2. Present self
- 3. Future self

Possibilities and potentials

- 1. The situation as it stands right now
- 2. The situation if I hold onto control
- 3. The situation if I let go of control
- 4. The situation if I show up with more love
- 5. The situation if I show up with more patience
- 6. The situation if I show up with more gratitude

Specific situation in question

- 1. What's present with an open heart
- 2. What's present with a closed heart
- 3. What's present with an open mind
- 4. What's present with a closed mind

People

- 1. Pull a card for yourself to determine what's present for you.
- 2. Pull a card for another person to determine what could be present for them

Who I would be ...

- 1. If I continued with the same habit or pattern
- 2. If I developed a new empowering habit or pattern

Major Arcana

o. THE FOOL

New Beginnings Potential Leap Of Faith

Cheers to embarking on a new journey or project. This could be a time for you to finally take that risk and follow your heart. Look beyond the horizon and notice all that's at your fingertips. You are ready to allow naïveté work in your favour. There are so many grand possibilities that can take place.

Keep in the mindset of, "this is all working out perfectly for me," and you shall be supported all along the way. You may not know where it will lead you, exactly, but go within and realize it's leading you to a place of light and pure fulfilment. If you want a taste of what it could be like, look beyond the horizon.

Hold the card close to you. Look at the wolf and the way he is gazing into the distance. He has a face of eagerness and true faith into what's about to happen. The man standing next to him is completely ready to jump, despite any potential obstacles. He knows how supported he is to do so.

You are ready to jump. Trust yourself.



I. THE MAGICIAN

Manifestation Action Creation

Bring your ideas to fruition and notice all the power you have inside of you. The flame of ambition is lighting from deep within your heart. Feel the heat of your ambition.

How magical is it that we have the power to create and manifest our desires through our thoughts and actions? This is a moment to bring your ideas to life, using your own personal power and resources, you have many of them to choose from and lead on.

Take necessary action. Use your creativity to bring your dreams to life. Find the passion within your heart and gut. Step forward with expressive movement. Shine bright and intentionally create the life that you've always wished for. Do it with intention and conviction. All while keeping in the forefront of your heart and mind: you create what you believe.



II. THE HIGH PRIESTESS

Intuition
Mystery
Hidden Knowledge

You are tapping into the inner wisdom and knowledge that rests inside of you. Perhaps there are challenges in your life related to mystery. Seek the known and look into the eyes of whatever it may be. Allow yourself to witness the mystery with your intuition so that you can become aware of secrecy.

There is hidden knowledge and wisdom to be gained from within ourselves. Trust the forces within and around you that are sending messages to you. Hold onto these messages and their channels close to your heart. This is a time to explore your own subconscious and spiritual realms, while embracing the unknown aspects of life.

Allow yourself to see, allow yourself to be seen. It is from this place that answers will expose themselves to you with a clear gaze.

Put in the effortless effort to live your truth and embody the intuitive knowledge you have deep within you. Enjoy the beautiful mystery of life, and trust in the answers you receive from within and the direction you are brought as you navigate your journey.



III. THE EMPRESS

CREATIVITY NURTURING ABUNDANCE

You seek to have a clear channel between your creativity, your intuition, and you. Abundance is at your fingertips, and you are experiencing prosperity in one or more areas of your life. There is wealth in everything, open your heart to witness it. Try it, right now. Do you feel it?

Witnessing abundance in everything in this world is the birthplace of effortless creativity, the kind that feels genuinely nurturing. Creativity and nurturing are essential aspects of our lives. In order for them to really exist, we must cultivate these qualities within ourselves and with those around us. Once this is done, it won't take long for them to flourish all around you.

Ensure your environment is conducive to growth and prosperity so you can be supported. This is your indication to get yourself ready to bloom in ways you may have yet to

experience quite in this manner. You have the unlimited potential to create and nurture the life you desire, and cultivate wealth in every aspect of your livelihood. Move forward with an open mind and heart as this might only be the beginning.

IV. THE EMPEROR



AUTHORITY STABILITY STRUCTURE

Having order and structure will do good for you. There may be challenges or opportunities for growth related to power and control. Stay grounded and allow the heat of your ambition fuel your power.

Notice the gentleman on the card, standing firm with authority and the image of a positive, yet strong and rooted force. Boundaries are what you need right now. Whether in your personal or professional life, make agreements with yourself (and maybe with others) that will lead you to taking your power back in a situation. Just do it with integrity.

You have your own sense of inner authority. If you want to show up as the successful leader that you are, use your power and influence wisely and responsibly. You have a lot of it and it can really bring you a long way.

Allow the fiery force within you to drive you, and the illuminated flames around you to guide you. That's what it is all there for.



V. THE HIEROPHANT

TRADITION SPIRITUALITY GUIDANCE

You are seeking spiritual or moral guidance. You are grappling with questions that relate to tradition or authority, perhaps you are seeking guidance from an elder, maybe one like the being on the card. If you were to consider her for a moment, and she had something to pass along to you, what would it be?

Respect what you are told and what you discover, but be sure it doesn't control you in ways that influence you to make misaligned choices. Right now, it's necessary for you to seek guidance from a tradition or guru outside of you, all while ensure that you are living from your intuition, first. Find the balance in here and you will be on the right track.

This is a great moment to really establish stability within yourself by seeking the guidance that brings you clarity, within you and outside of you.



VI. THE LOVERS

LOVE RELATIONSHIPS CHOICES

You have an influential decision or choice related to matters of the heart. Hopefully, this results in a mutual feeling of light and liberation between the parties involved. Right now you're really in need of greater harmony and connection in your life. It will arrive. However, this may require some work or action on your behalf. Instead of 50/50, it could feel like 90/10. Trust that it's all perfect and is exactly what's meant to happen.

True love comes from a deep connection and mutual respect. Right now is an excellent time to choose between two or more paths, but do it with love. This could be in matters of the heart and relationships, or in another area of your life.

Take all the time you need to access your intuition and inner wisdom to make choices that align with your deepest values and desires.

Love is a powerful force that can bring joy, healing, and fulfilment to you. Consciously experience the power of unity, and make choices that align with you.



VII. THE CHARIOT

VICTORY WILLPOWER DETERMINATION

Look forward, ready to take charge if you haven't already. You may have to face an obstacle before you reach victory. Just stay committed, move with determination and a deeper knowing that you are the victor. You are held and supported by one of the mightiest forces behind you, so don't look back. Notice the power in the card between the woman and the tiger, especially being on the same team. Keep walking with conviction and gratification.

Nothing will hold you back from getting what you desire. Victory is within your reach, and with the right mindset, you can overcome anything at this point. This card is a great sign if you'd had a challenge at hand. You'll overcome it if you haven't already.

Champion your own power and potential. Take control of your own destiny.



VIII. STRENGTH

COURAGE
INNER STRENGTH
SELF-CONTROL

Chances are, you are facing a challenge or need to overcome an obstacle. Think of the courage of a lion. You must understand that you don't need to look for this level of courage anywhere from outside of you, as you already have that within you. You just need to realize this.

Stay focused and you will overcome any challenges, even if they feel a hundred times bigger than you. Ensure that you are cultivating the patience and perseverance necessary as you work through difficulties and setbacks. Your bravery is one of your greatest allies here.

This is your invitation to breathe in strength and choose to invoke the privilege to face any challenge. You have the resilience and fortitude to overcome any hurdle that comes your way. If it's in your highest alignment to overcome it, you will; and for a good reason.

Believe in yourself, especially in the moments you feel you may want to back down. They are only temporary.



IX. THE HERMIT

Introspection Solitude Inner Wisdom

You are seeking a deeper understanding of yourself or the world around you. Take time to reflect and recharge. If you aren't sure how to gain clarity, gaze into the eye of a candle to clear your mind. This works almost every time.

True wisdom and understanding come from within. By taking time to be alone with your thoughts, you can tap into your inner wisdom and gain greater clarity and insight. Stillness and reflection will support you on your current journey. Seek to connect with your inner self and find your own path without allowing the words of those outside of you to influence you.

Welcome in this irrevocable power of solitude and introspection. Trust your inner voice and follow your own path, even, and especially, if it is different from the paths of

others. You are unique and your place in this world reflects that uniqueness.

Your journey is just that: yours! Champion the internal compass that never leads you in the wrong direction. This may be the only voice you need to listen to right now.



X. THE WHEEL OF FORTUNE

CYCLES CHANGE KARMA.

You are experiencing a major shift or turning point, right now could be a great time to embrace a new perspective. This is a moment to begin a new cycle of change. Ensure that you enter in the moment that best serves you.

Notice the cyclical nature of life and the idea that what goes up must come down. Reflect upon the concept of destiny or fate, as you trust in the larger forces at play in your life.

Learn to embrace change and uncertainty, and to see the ups and downs of life as part of a larger cycle. Stay grounded and centred, even in the midst of change and chaos. Keep your eye on what lights you up and walk in that direction, even if it feels unknown.

Life is full of surprises, and your response to these changes is what ultimately shapes your destiny. Embrace the unknown with curiosity and openness, know that every experience, whether positive or negative, is an opportunity for growth and learning.



XI. JUSTICE

BALANCE FAIRNESS CONSEQUENCES

You need greater clarity or resolution in a situation. You must make an important decision for that to happen. Perhaps you need to have a meeting with someone or something (maybe that someone is yourself) to determine how to establish balance in your life. If you don't move forward in the right direction along with self-responsibility, there could be consequences. But if that does happen, don't worry, because they will teach you what you need to learn.

You may feel a sense of impartiality and objectivity, as you seek to weigh the pros and cons of a situation and make a just decision. Do you have a need for accountability?

Unearth greater clarity and balance in your life. Unearth the real truth. Unearth what you need to know to live in fairness within yourself, and with others.



XII. THE HANGED MAN

SURRENDER SACRIFICE LETTING GO.

You are in a period of transition or uncertainty and need to surrender to the flow of life. Wherever you choose to let go is where your wish fulfilled resides. There is only contentment on the other side of true surrender, but you have to give yourself a long enough exhale to receive the fruits of this surrender.

Cultivate the willingness needed to let go of control and see things from a new perspective. Do you feel like you are waiting? Trust things will unfold in their own time. Really surrender to the moment, completely let go and trust the process.

As you learn to release attachment to outcomes, the universe will share its wisdom with you. As you drop your ego and relax into your heart, you will hear the call.

The most important thing to remember here is that the act of letting go is what will guide you.



XIII. DEATH

TRANSFORMATION CHANGE END OF A CYCLE

You are going through a major transition and something in your life is coming to an end. Big transformation is occurring for you and it's certainly not anything bad. This Death card symbolizes the end of a cycle that has caused you pain or sabotaged you in some way. You have the opportunity right now to remove the gravity of a situation in your life and start anew.

This is a time of great change with a big charge! The beautiful creatures in the photo, representing both light and shadow, are dedicatedly making their way out of the dense forests and into a bright open space.

It may not be easy for you to fully let go, but it is time. And you know what it is that I am referring to. Don't pretend you don't! You can do this. Let go and stick to it. It may feel tempting to hold onto the old due to attachment or a self-fulling prophecy, but this is not the time for that.

Put that old self to sleep with love and kindness, and move forward into the truth of who you are. You know exactly what this looks like. Believe it.



XIV. TEMPERANCE

BALANCE HARMONY MODERATION.

Right now you need greater equilibrium and flow in your life to feel more at peace. Receive a deep breath and relax because it is here. And, it feels liberating. This angelic creature in the card is ascending, just like you.

It's time for the integration of opposites, such as work and play, or body and spirit, or light and dark, or feminine and masculine. There is a need for greater self-control and discipline, as you seek to find the right balance between different aspects of your life.

You shall find greater peace and harmony within yourself and with those around you. Be patient and compassionate, as you navigate through the ups and downs of life. This will bring you to a more liberated state.

Life is a journey. Balance and harmony are essential to finding true fulfilment, happiness, and enlightenment. Joyfully seize all aspects of yourself and your life, and find a sense of flow and ease in everything you do.



XV. THE DEVIL

Temptation Materialism Bondage.

You are feeling trapped or controlled by your own desires or addictions. It feels intense and perhaps a bit heavy. It could also just feel a bit scary right now. But become aware what stands before you. Don't pretend it's not there, the great and the awful.

Sometimes we can easily become attached to material possessions or harmful behaviours, creating a sense of bondage or entrapment. Patterns of negative thinking or self-sabotage that may be present keep us stuck in unhealthy cycles.

Confront the negative patterns and behaviours holding you back. Break yourself free. Take responsibility for your choices and actions. Be honest with yourself about what truly brings you fulfilment and happiness.

You have the power to overcome your own limitations and create a life of freedom and purpose. Take this as a call to resist the temptation of external influences that may lead you astray, and focus on what truly matters in your heart and soul.



XVI. THE TOWER

CHANGE UPHEAVAL COURAGE

There is a major shift happening in your life that may be difficult or even traumatic. But don't worry, because a breakdown of old structures and belief systems creates space for new growth and transformation. There could be a sense of chaos and uncertainty, but only because it comes with a solid feeling of renewal.

Understand that change is inevitable. Dismantle what no longer serves you. Be authentic, perhaps even vulnerable, with yourself and others, as you navigate through the challenges ahead.

Change and unfamiliarity are inevitable and necessary for growth. Resilience is needed, trust that you have the power to weather any storm. Choose to move through this change with resolve.



XVII. THE STAR

HOPE INSPIRATION RENEWAL

You are asking questions and are ready to receive the answers. You've had enough waiting. You're done with feeling lost. Perhaps you are in need of guidance and clarity. Look to the future with optimism and trust that the universe has a plan for you (and it's a good one). Focus on your dreams and aspirations, as they will help guide you towards your true purpose.

Tap into your inner wisdom to pursue your goals. It's time for healing and emotional renewal, as you let go of past hurts and rejoice in a brighter future.

Keep faith and believe in yourself, even when things seem dark. Hope and inspiration are lighting your way towards a better tomorrow.



XVIII. THE MOON

SUBCONSCIOUS MIND HIDDEN EMOTIONS INTUITION.

Trust your intuition and explore the unknown parts of yourself. This could be a time of confusion or doubt, but know that these feelings will pass. You will emerge with a deeper understanding of yourself and your place in the world. This card also encourages you to pay attention to your dreams and the symbols and signs that come to you in the night. Notice all of it.

You have a strong connection with the divine and a deep appreciation for beauty and creativity. You may find yourself drawn to artistic or spiritual endeavours, and follow these passions as a way to connect with your inner self and explore the mysteries of the universe. By trusting your intuition and trusting the unknown, you can unlock the secrets of your soul and discover the magic that lies within you.

This is your time to understand your deeper truths and gain insight into your subconscious mind. While it may be a challenging moment, trust in the journey and let magic guide you along the way.

XIX. THE SUN



JOY POSITIVITY SUCCESS

Positive energy and vitality surround you. Stay optimistic, even in the face of challenges and difficulties. This is an era of victory. Celebrate your accomplishments and enjoy the fruits of your labour.

Notice your sense of purpose and fulfilment. You may find yourself drawn to spiritual or creative pursuits, and should follow these passions as a way to connect with your inner self and express your unique talents and abilities. By staying positive, celebrating your glory, and the beauty of the world around you, you can create a more meaningful life for yourself and those in your field. This is one of the most fulfilling things you may ever do for yourself and those you love most.

By communing with this card, you engage in the power of positivity and use it to fuel your growth and success. Think

of this as a message for you to step into a new chapter of your life, with renewed energy and vitality. Enjoy the journey and bask in the warmth and light of your own inner radiance.



XX. JUDGMENT

RENEWAL REBIRTH AWAKENING.

You are going through a major transformation or shift, or seeking greater clarity and insight about a particular situation or series of situations. Look up and witness that this is your moment of (re)awakening. It has the potential to be an enlightening one. Are you going to receive it as such?

Take stock of your life. Evaluate the choices you have made so far. Consider an existing need for forgiveness and letting go of the past so that you can move forward with a new sense of purpose. It's going to feel far better than right now. Imagine it for a moment.

Right now, you have the opportunity to gain greater clarity and perspective on your life's journey. Let go of any guilt or shame, and harness in the power of forgiveness and compassion. Allow yourself to pursue this sacred rise your soul wants to take you on.

Although every single choice you make has consequences, it is never too late to make a change. It is time to awaken to your true potential and allow the transformations to take place. This will serve you well.



XXI. THE WORLD

COMPLETION FULFILMENT UNITY

It's time to celebrate! You have achieved a massive milestone in your life. You are experiencing a sense of wholeness and harmony. Notice the warmth of this feeling, maybe even the heat. Do you sense the passion ignited?

You have come full circle in your journey, and you have achieved balance and completion in an important area of your life, perhaps in all of your life. You sense a connection and oneness with the universe, as you recognize your place in the larger scheme of things.

Breathe in the unity and interconnectedness with all things. Celebrate your accomplishments and recognize the wisdom and growth that have come from your experiences. Be amazed by your own life, and life itself.

You are a part of something greater than you as an individual body. Your journey is simply a reflection of the universal human experience. Enjoy your place in The World with humility and gratitude. Know that every experience, whether positive or negative, has helped to shape you into the person you are today.

And you are amazing.

MINOR ARCANA

WANDS



ACE OF WANDS

Inspiration New Beginnings Creative Potential.

You are embarking on a new creative project or endeavour, or you are seeking expand your own creative potential. Now is the time as the portal of your creativity surrounds you from outside of you, and fills you from within you.

Open your eyes to see the availability for new beginnings and fresh starts, especially in relation to creative endeavours. Wave your magic wand because this is your chance to have your wish fulfilled of whatever it is that you desire! You have the ability to unleash your creativity alongside the underlying and potent inspiration and motivation to pursue your passions and new projects.

Pursue these passions with energy and enthusiasm, using your own personal power. It's at your fingertips. If you feel like you are losing momentum of your creativity, just take a deep breath, open your eyes, and witness that the light of your creativity is shining right in front of you.

You have the power to create and manifest your desires, maybe with your magic wand. Now is the time for you to start. It is never too late to hone in your power. Your creative power is here, and you are supported to become an expression of it.

You have the power to create and manifest your desires. Now is the time for you to start. It is never too late to hone in your power. Your creative power is here, and you are supported to become an expression of it.



TWO OF WANDS

DECISION-MAKING PLANNING ACTION.

You're at a crossroads. Are you working to make an important decision or take action towards your goals? Take the step forward, you are ready. There is nothing but magic on the other side.

So, take this as the time to make a choice, particularly in relation to your long-term plans and aspirations. Be patient and strategic in your decision-making process, and consider all possible options before moving forward.

When you follow through with strategic decisions, you will be led towards the actuality of your desires. Trust that this is where you're going. In many ways, you are already there. Notice the woman in the card, she may not yet be through the door, but she's walking convincingly forward, already past the first few steps. Step through the door and fully into the life that you desire. You are at the precipice of choosing what will bring you to great fulfilment. Be proactive in the pursuit of your aspirations. You shall walk in the direction you intend with confidence and enthusiasm. This will assure you are on a good path.



THREE OF WANDS

GROWTH EXPANSION PROGRESS.

You are making progress towards your ideal future by expanding your horizons and seeking out new ways to grow. You are as ready to grow as a tree grounded deep into the earth, with roots heavy in the ground, prepared to flourish wildly and strong enough to withstand any storm.

This is an intentional moment of growth, expansion and progress, particularly in relation to your long-term ambitions and aspirations. The need of the time is to think big and take bold action that feeds your ambition, while remaining open to all that could come; there may be some great things about to fall into your lap.

It's your moment to gain momentum. Open yourself up to the realm of expansion. Your dreams are here. Don't let them slip through your fingers. They are already flourishing and magic is already swarming around them, supporting them to come to life. You just need to open your eyes to see it all. You are on the right path.



FOUR OF WANDS

CELEBRATION STABILITY HARMONY.

Now is a time to celebrate because this is a moment of awaited stability and foundation, preparing you for your future. Notice the brightness and warmth emanating from the home within you, or in your physical home. Practice gratitude for the harmony and positivity in your life.

There is much happiness ready to be shared with others and when you do choose to share it, there will be even more to celebrate. How delicious is that?

Enjoy your triumph and the security in your life. You are surrounded by love and support. Remember that by building a strong foundation for your future, you will experience so much harmony and have many reasons to celebrate. Celebrate the auspiciousness in your life, cultivate greater harmony in your relationships, and focus

on building a stable and secure foundation for your future. This will only lead you to even more good fortune.



FIVE OF WANDS

COMPETITION CONFLICT CHALLENGES.

Right now is a moment of resistance. Are you experiencing competition and conflict? This could be in relation to your creative endeavours. Work through the challenges necessary to come out as a winner on the other side. Push through whatever resistance is there until it dissipates.

Notice if this feeling of competition is with others or if it's within yourself. Is your greatest conflict with a part of you? Acknowledge the challenges you are facing and develop creative strategies for overcoming them. Stay focused and determined, even when you are facing resistance or opposition.

If you feel like you are losing patience or motivation, just remember that everything you are going through is a natural part of your journey towards success. By facing these obstacles head-on and putting in the effort to work through them, you will emerge with far greater resilience.

It will serve your boundless exponential growth.

SIX OF WANDS

VICTORY
RECOGNITION
ACHIEVEMENT.

You are entering a time of recognition, victory, and achievement. You have positive energy and public acclaim surrounding you. Celebrate your accomplishments, feel proud of your achievements, and enjoy the recognition that you have earned. Allow any insecurities to wither away as you have reasons to become secure, just be careful not to step into a space of arrogance as this is not who you are.

Be confident and focused, even in the face of challenges and setbacks. Right now is all about growth and progress. Connect with others and ground into a deep sense of appreciation for the support and encouragement of those around you.

Celebrate with those closest to you, because they are becoming victorious with you! Commit to your everevolving ambitions. You are already winning, and there is more of this to come. Believe that you are becoming the victor of your own creations.



SEVEN OF WANDS

CHALLENGE
COMPETITION
STANDING YOUR
GROUND.

When you are faced with opposition or resistance, you may have the need to defend your position or ideas. There is a presence of challenge and competition in your current reality. This is a time for you to stand your ground without looking back. Look forward, firmly.

Stand up for yourself and your ideas. Remain confident with your fierce eye, especially when faced with adversity. You will be supported when you truly stand for yourself, with love.

This is all part of the natural part of the journey in order for you to reach success and live an auspicious life. You are being brought to a greater space of resilience through this experience. Stand your ground and you will come out on top.



FIGHT OF WANDS

MOVEMENT ACTION FORWARD MOMENTUM.

You are experiencing a sudden surge of energy or inspiration and must take the leap (a big one) to achieve the objectives you've set out for yourself. You are ready to jump if you haven't already, so believe in yourself fully as you do. A tiger jumps with conviction, without holding back. You can do that, too.

Think of movement and rapid progress in the area of your life you feel most inspired by at the moment. If it feels right in your heart, don't wait. Take action now. There is a reason you are receiving this calling.

Harness the energy of momentum while trusting the flow of life and embarking on the limitless possibilities that feel right for you, right as they arise. Taking swift and decisive action is your key to success right now.

As you move forward, notice all the gifts that come your way. There are many. And when you notice them, even more will present themselves to you. You'll be kept on a good upward and forward momentum.



NINE OF WANDS

RESILIENCE
DETERMINATION
PERSEVERANCE.

Persist through any challenges you may be facing with your head held high. Walk the path with dedication and conviction. Don't second guess yourself. You are in the right direction and you have an inner light with you, guiding you. Trust it. Trust yourself. Believe in it. Believe in YOU. Walk forward. Know that whatever was left behind is exactly what was meant to be left behind.

Resilience will push you to keep going. Protect what you have built or achieved so far. Be mindful of challenges that may arise moving forward. Be brave and overcome what's holding you back from being completely on your path. Be prepared for what may come your way.

Remember, you have the power to protect what's important to you. Stay strong, focused, and keep moving forward. You are always moving forward.

Say it with me, "I am always moving forward."



TEN OF WANDS

BURDEN
RESPONSIBILITY
HARD WORK.

You've taken on too many responsibilities. Is this more recent? Or, have you been carrying a heavy load for a long time? Either way, you're taking on too much and this is a time to consider delegating some tasks or seeking help from others.

Notice if you need to let go of responsibilities or commitments that no longer serve you. And, notice what ones serve you to keep engaged with. It's okay to ask for help and share your load with others. Prioritize your own well-being and take breaks when you need them.

Look at the image of this card, the gentleman is intentionally observing his task, working attentively and diligently. If he invites in too much action, there would be a need for support from others to not feel burdened.

Identify areas in your life where you're overburdened and make a plan to lighten your load. Take care of yourself and find a balance between your responsibilities and your personal needs. Stay active on the projects that serve you the most, and let others support you with everything else.

You are held, if you are willing to receive it.



PAGE OF WANDS

ENTHUSIASM CREATIVITY EXPLORATION.

You have a burst of energy, enthusiasm, and creativity. You are embarking on a new creative project, or are feeling excited about a new opportunity. You are eager to explore fresh ideas and ways of expressing yourself, and are enthusiastic about the possibilities that lie ahead; as you should be.

Be open to the presence of a messenger of news or opportunities in your life. This could be someone who brings you exciting news, or who offers you a new opportunity for growth and exploration. Be open to whatever new experiences come your way, and approach them with curiosity and enthusiasm.

Notice the person in the photo holding a wand, this symbolizes the power of inspiration and creative energy. You must embrace your passions and follow your creative

impulses. Allow yourself to take risks, try new things, and approach blockages and challenges with a sense of playfulness and adventure.

Right now, you are encouraged to approach life with a sense of passion and a willingness to explore new opportunities. Trust in your own creative abilities, and be open to the guidance and inspiration of others. Growth, creativity, and exploration are on your side. Stay open to what could come and you'll achieve great things.



KNIGHT OF WANDS

PASSION ENERGY MOVEMENT.

You have a strong desire to move forward with passion, but know that it requires you to commit. You need to find the energy to put your fear of risks, of any kind, to the side. This is a considerable step towards your dreams and you don't want to miss it. Explore the unknown territory; it will serve you. The lion is here to remind you that you are fierce and can overcome any obstacles and challenges along with confidence and bravery.

You are not in this alone. There is someone in your life who is full of vibrancy. This person may be impulsive and quick to take action, but they are also passionate and dedicated to their goals. Is this person you? Look inside your core, your solar plexus, to find the answer.

Awaken passion and energy to move forward with your plans and dreams. Stay focused and avoid impulsiveness.

Don't back down from your dreams. You have confidence on your team.



QUEEN OF WANDS

CREATIVITY CONFIDENCE PASSION.

You are strong and capable. You are taking charge of your own life. You have the power of creativity and commitment to move forward. Start now if you haven't already. The tiger symbolizes power, strength, and confidence. This archetype supports the Queen's ability to take charge and assert her authority, while maintaining her grace and elegance.

Your ideas, leadership, and passion will give you the energy necessary to drive your creation through to completion. Be true to yourself and your vision. Do not be swayed by the opinions or criticisms of others. Be bold and take risks, while remaining grounded and focused on your goals.

Creativity and leadership will guide you to success. You have unique talents, notice them and use them. Be in the flow of your creativity and intelligence.



KING OF WANDS

LEADERSHIP PASSION AMBITION.

You know what you must always remember? You are a natural-born leader. You have a fiery and confident nature. You are not afraid of what could play out, and you have a strong vision that inspires others to follow your lead. You are the King and when you are connected to your truest nature, your heart, you can only positively impact that world with your leadership.

There is a flame of passion inside of you, suggesting you are ready to take a huge leap forward in your life. Make sure you heighten your communication skills and charisma to reach higher, as this is natural to you. This is what makes you heard, seen, and understood.

Take charge. Be fierce. Move forward. Don't back down. This is only the beginning. You are about to conquer far more than you may have ever imagined. How beautiful is

that? Enjoy it with the blazing passion inside of you as you witness it all unfold.

CUPS



ACE OF CUPS

New Beginnings Love Creativity.

Right now is a beautiful explosion of new creative experiences, spiritual awareness, and emotional fulfilment. Everything is flourishing beautifully, and it's all happening at once. Feel the reality of all this because it really is real.

There could be a new relationship, either romantic or platonic, that brings emotional fulfilment and meaningful connection into your life. This could be a fresh relationship, or one that's being given another chance; either way, it's a new meeting, a new beginning. You may experience a renewed sense of love and affection, whether it be with yourself, another, or an energy.

Connect to your emotions, Follow your heart. Invite in all your feelings with an open and compassionate attitude. And remember: everything that's happening for you right now is exactly what's supposed to happen. It's beautiful.



TWO OF CUPS

CONNECTION HARMONY PARTNERSHIP.

The Two of Cups represents a union or relationship, often romantic, that is built on mutual respect, understanding, and trust. There's a relationship in your life that is presented with an opportunity to deepen. This relationship will become more harmonious and fruitful than you may have ever imagined. There is a balance taking place between two individuals, if there isn't a feeling of peace within this relationship right now, there will be soon.

Open yourself up to love as you enter this period of emotional closeness with another person. You must find common ground and compromise in your relationships. Remember that "compromise" does not necessarily mean that someone has to miss out on something they desire to have... or maybe it does. The choice is yours, as long as it remains harmonious.



THREE OF CUPS

JOY CELEBRATION ABUNDANCE.

Celebrate with all of your loved ones. Play! Realise that there is a reason to find happiness in so many things, even everything. Give yourself time for joy, playfulness, and celebration with those that you love so much! This is a time of success and achievement, where you are reaping the rewards of your hard work and dedication.

Notice all the happiness and fulfilment that surrounds you. Enjoy the company of those that you love and deepen your bond. This card could indicate that this company is with a lover; if you don't have one right now, it's possible that love is coming. Or, there is simply a whole lot of love to realize within yourself.

Whatever may be happening, celebrate all the good things in your field. Share your happiness and abundance of all kinds with others. It will only bring you even more.



FOUR OF CUPS

APATHY
DISAPPOINTMENT
EMOTIONAL
DETACHMENT.

You are feeling dissatisfied and unfulfilled. There may be heaviness or uncomfortable density in your body. Are you experiencing a sense of boredom or apathy, feeling as though life has become stagnant or routine, or just strictly unfulfilling? Chances are, you are so focused on what you don't have, that you are blind to the opportunities and blessings that do surround you.

Take hold of your emotions, regulate them; this is where your power rests right now. There may be a sense of gloominess, yet, there is so much you have to be grateful for. Discover what you struggle to feel gratitude for. Do you struggle because you're blocking yourself from gratitude, or is it because this thing or situation is no longer in alignment with you?

Appreciate all that you are able to, rather than dwelling on what you lack. Look beyond your current circumstances and consider new possibilities and perspectives, all while taking care of yourself and your emotions.



FIVE OF CUPS

DISAPPOINTMENT LOSS SADNESS.

You are experiencing a deep sense of disappointment, mourning the loss of something that was important to you. It could be a relationship, a job, a dream, or a cherished possession. You may be feeling sad, regretful, or guilty about what has happened. This all makes sense and is understandable.

Look at the card, though. At first glance, it may feel like a dark and gloomy card, one that you may want to avoid or place back into the deck. But before you do that, notice all the little candlelights that surround the being on the card. All you have to do is encourage the flame to get a little tiny bit bigger on each candle.

So, how do you do that? Accept what has happened and turn up the volume of forgiveness. Forgive everyone, especially yourself. This will help you to move forward and find peace. You are on this path for spiritual growth and although the contrast may feel really heavy right now, it's going to feel so bright the moment the candle flames illuminate and flicker and the clouds part ways.



SIX OF CUPS

NOSTALGIA INNOCENCE FOND MEMORIES.

You are feeling nostalgic and sentimental, longing for the comfort and simplicity of the past. You're reminiscing about a time in your life when things felt easier or more carefree. These are dear memories you're looking back on, all close to your heart. It's all very bittersweet.

It will serve you tremendously to connect with your inner child and find joy in the simple things. Connect with family or loved ones, or revisit a hobby or interest from your past. Notice if there is a need to heal old wounds or address past traumas that may be affecting your present. Dismantle those limiting beliefs that have held you back. Make sure you do all of this with that childlike innocence. This is one of your greatest allies at the moment.

Notice how much you really do appreciate your life. Notice how grateful you are. Notice that gratitude is one of the

greatest feelings that will help push you forward. And notice the immense joy that comes from giving with gratitude and without expectation of anything in return.

Notice it all, with that adolescent eye.



SEVEN OF CUPS

CONFUSION INDECISIVENESS INTROSPECTION.

You are faced with a multitude of options and possibilities, making it difficult to make a decision. Overwhelm may be weighing on you, unfortunately struggling to discern which options are truly in alignment with your goals and values. Relax and breathe deeply as you consider the direction you wish to take.

Sit quietly in a space where you can find some silence. Get into a state of meditation. Look at the card. What do you see? Notice where your mind is drawn and take that as an insight of the answer you're looking to receive.

Be mindful of the illusions and distractions that could be around you. The butterflies in this card could be exactly what the woman in the card is looking for, or they could be a beautiful illusion. It may be tempting to pursue short-term pleasures or instant gratification, but these

distractions can ultimately lead you away from your true path. Follow what matters most.



EIGHT OF CUPS

Departure EXPLORATION Self-Discovery.

You are experiencing a sense of restlessness and discontent, and are feeling called to embark on a new journey. Are you feeling unfulfilled in your current circumstances? This is a time to seek a new path or direction. It might be the hardest path to reach, but once you are on it, it's smooth sailing.

Trust your intuition and follow your inner guidance. Leave behind old patterns or relationships that are no longer serving your highest good. Seek out new experiences and opportunities that are more aligned with your true purpose and potential.

Self-reflection and introspection will support you along the way. Evaluate your values, beliefs, and priorities, as you consider how they align with your current path. By doing this, you can gain clarity on what you truly want, and make choices that are in alignment with your highest good.

To be on this path of self-discovery, you must let go of what is familiar and comfortable, maybe even what gives you a feeling of pseudo-safety. By doing so, you open yourself up to new opportunities and experiences that can bring greater fulfilment and meaning into your life.



NINE OF CUPS

FULFILMENT CONTENTMENT HAPPINESS.

You are emotionally fulfilled and satisfied. Appreciate all the good things in your life. If you are finding it hard, just look up and witness the vastness that rests beyond the horizon. There is so much to be grateful for. You have put in great efforts to achieve this sense of satisfaction and create the life you desire. Now is a time to celebrate and enjoy the fruits of your labour. How do you plan to celebrate? The world is your oyster.

True fulfilment comes not just from material possessions, but also from deep connections and relationships with others. Remember to cultivate meaningful relationships with loved ones and give back to others whenever possible. This will bring you even more emotional satisfaction than what's already present.

By sharing your abundance and love with others, you create a cycle of giving and receiving that can bring even greater joy and fulfilment into your life. Enjoy the present moment and all the blessings in your life, whether they be material, relational, spiritual, or anything in between.

There is a lot to celebrate.



TEN OF CUPS

Happiness Harmony Balance.

There is so much joy in your relationships and family life. Perhaps you're experiencing this joy as you stand in the centre, surrounded by your community. You are in a period of happiness and contentment in your personal life. Real happiness comes from connections with others and a sense of belonging. Now is the perfect time to focus on nurturing your relationships and creating a supportive and loving environment for yourself and those around you.

Don't ever forget that relationships require effort and work. Be patient and compassionate in your interactions with loved ones. Make time to truly connect with them. Express gratitude for them. By creating a positive and loving environment for those around you, you can help to spread happiness and create a better world for everyone. When you treat your relationships with love, knowing that

they are the greatest attributers to your growth, life will become even more magical.



PAGE OF CUPS

SENSITIVITY YOUTHFULNESS CREATIVE ENERGY.

You know when a child engages with a new activity and has a way of just falling deep into it during certain moments? Almost like the child is becoming one with this endeavour. This is the energy that you need right now.

Something wonderful has started its creation, perhaps it's something new or a deepening of something old, making it feel like new. This could be a hobby, a musical instrument, or even a relationship that requires this little inner child's attention, admiration, and love.

Open yourself up to the world around you, be receptive to what could be on its way in. Feel the magic of your focus. Make this a practice of self-care, and one that turns into self-love.



KNIGHT OF CUPS

SENSITIVE ROMANTIC IMAGINATIVE.

You are a romantic and imaginative person and have a strong desire to pursue your dreams and emotions. You are in touch with your intuition and have a deep appreciation for beauty and creativity. You allow yourself to be seduced by your world; don't ever hold back from this. You're on a quest for emotional fulfilment, seeking experiences that resonate with your heart and soul.

Let your heart lead you in all you do. You have a natural talent for art, music, or other creative pursuits. Invite these talents to flourish by creating ceremonial spaces in that support you in connecting to your emotional side.

These talents will support you in regulating your emotions and connect with others on a more satisfying level. You may find yourself desiring to create a stronger connection with another person, with a part of yourself, or with your

guides, angels, or spirits. It's all up to you. Just stay intentional about it.

You are embarking on a journey with opportunities ready to seduce you all along the way. This is a beautiful quality and one that will continue to nurture your imagination and curious soul.



QUEEN OF CUPS

EMOTIONAL MATURITY INTUITION COMPASSION.

You are an empathetic and intuitive person, with an emotional depth and nurturing nature. Your strong sense of compassion makes you ready to offer support to those in need. You may be a natural healer, and have the ability to connect with others on a deep emotional level. You hold a strong, liberating, and loving energy of light.

Follow your inner guidance. Your understanding of yourself makes it more possible to express what's happening inside of you in a healthy and constructive way. You may be called upon to offer emotional support to others. Be ready to offer your insights and guidance.

You have a strong connection with the divine and a deep appreciation for beauty and creativity. Use your natural artistry to create a more fulfilling and meaningful life for yourself and those around you.



KING OF CUPS

COMPASSION EMPATHY INTUITION.

You are calm, caring, and intuitive. You have a clear connection to Source, Earth, and the world around you. You can see where the light comes from and receive it with grace and clarity.

Just like you, the King on the card sits humbly and confidently. He knows exactly what is waiting for him and holds empathy for the world around him close to his heart. The world around him never escapes from his awareness. He is a true King. He is strong in nature and compassionate in his heart.

And just like you, this King is connected to his emotions and knows how to purify him with the element of water that surrounds him. This is an incredible journey to embark on, one where the divine masculine is alive—filled with strength, kindness, and love.

SWORDS



ACE OF SWORDS

CLARITY
TRUTH
VICTORY.

Right now is a new beginning, especially for your mind and intellect. It is a powerful moment of clarity and insight. All of this lies before you. Cut through confusion, illusion, and uncertainty in order to arrive at a new understanding or truth. All you need to do is just look up. You will see that you've already reached victory.

As you realize this truth, there's a possibility of conflict, change, or upheaval in some way. It's only happening to make room for the new. You are powerful and have authority, and this shall not be taken lightly. This will support you in making decisive choices to take aligned action. Where is this sense of power from within you going to push you?

This is a breakthrough, and it's about to get even more incredible. You're about to become even more victorious

than ever before. Gain clarity on how you want to experience this, as this will be an important part of stepping fully into this potential.



Two OF Swords

STALEMATE INDECISION BALANCE.

You have a difficult decision on your hands and a need for balance and compromise. It could be helpful for you to have a look in the mirror. What do you see? Notice what this part of you could be saying. Is it the voice of your heart or your mind that has been making your decisions?

Let's look at it like this for a moment: Your heart sounds pure, like a calming vibration that brings you back to knowing the truth of who you are. Your ego sounds like it longs for something it may not have received as a child. See if you can work with both of these to make a choice that is most aligned with your Highest Self. Follow your heart and honour your ego.

You will make the right decision, no matter what. It may help you to look in the mirror and really be honest with yourself. Stop listening to the part of you that is trying to convince you that it is the "right" voice to listen to. Notice that gentle, soft, part of you, deep down, that sees and knows.

If you can't see it, stand in front of the mirror longer, look into your left eye, and give yourself time, as long as 12 minutes. You will find what you are looking for.

The being in the card sits patiently until he has answers. The more he brings softness to his mind, and openness to his heart, the clearer the light of the reflection shines through.



THREE OF SWORDS

HEARTBREAK GRIEF PAIN.

No one ever said that heartbreak, grief, and pain were easy. And if they did, they were likely pushing down the truth of their own experience. Emotional pain and sorrow are weighing on you. Or, are you being set free by virtue of it? This card indicates the importance of you allowing and encouraging yourself to experience whatever it is that's arising.

The person in the card is allowing themself to feel everything, not pushing anything down or away. Surrender to the feelings of grief or pain if they feel present for you; even if it's mildly. This card gives you the permission to give space to these emotions to be felt and released.

Mourning, grief, or separation invokes an element of struggle when it comes to accepting loss or betrayal. Remember that pain is an experience that must be felt, suffering is a choice to prolong the pain. You must face and deal with your emotions in order to move forward. Let them run through you entirely.

Observe if you need to remove yourself from a situation entirely. It may be difficult, but this is necessary in order to complete the healing process in its entirety.



FOUR OF SWORDS

RECUPERATION
CONTEMPLATION.

Go within and recharge. Surround yourself with everything that you may need to feel the light and infinite energy reignite within you again. This could be a period of intense activity or stress, indicating that it is time to take a break and recuperate. Burning yourself out will hurt you far more than taking things slow.

Rest is necessary for physical and mental wellness and awareness. Wait until you've indulged in much-needed rest before taking time to reflect. This will guide you towards a greater sense of understanding of yourself and the situation that you are in and may be contemplating.

Discover if you have a need for withdrawal from external stimulation, such as social media or other distractions, in order to focus on your inner thoughts and feelings. This is a time for an exhalation. Now. Make it a long one.



FIVE OF SWORDS

CONFLICT
DEFEAT
BETRAYAL.

It's possible you're feeling defeated, like you are done with one chapter of your life; or perhaps you are complete with the entire book. You're in the process of shifting from the victim to the victor. Give yourself permission to let go of what brought you here (especially if the thought of this situation is making you sick, depleting you, or holding you back).

Look at where you are now. That's all that matters. Let the past go, surrender to the present, and have faith in the brightness of your future. This card has a human sitting, looking into the light of the sun, having just overcome swimming through dark, potentially painful waters. The moment they called defeat and surrendered to what was happening, they rose into their power again. They rose into a space brighter than ever before.

This is time for you to let go of what's been holding you in the headache of conflict. Claim defeat and drop your sword. Take a full breath, connect to the heart of who you are. Rise up, even more proud, with so much to celebrate on this other side.



SIX OF SWORDS

Transition Progress Journey.

You're experiencing a significant transition. It may be challenging, but it's full of hope (as it should be). You are progressing with the light, to an even brighter one. So don't worry, there is something better on the horizon—far better than you may have ever known. It's time for you to move on from a difficult situation or leave something behind so that you can find peace and resolution.

Whether it be physical or metaphorical, you are on a journey that will bless you with growth if it hasn't already. However, in order to move you forward positively, you must let go of past hurts. This will ensure that you move forward with clarity and purpose.

Trust fully that you will overcome the storms and big waters in the sea. Your soul shines bright and can overcome anything.



SEVEN OF SWORDS

DECEPTION
THEFT
ESCAPE.

You're in a situation where someone is trying to take advantage of others, and it may actually be working. There could be lying, deceit, betrayal, manipulation, or conniving action. Someone is being sneaky in order to get what they want. There may be an avoidance of responsibility or a taking of shortcuts, which will ultimately lead to backfire. Is this someone you?

You need to be clever to successfully navigate this situation. Think outside the box and invent creative solutions to the situation at hand. Be wise as you come to these results.

This could be seen as a positive or negative card to pull, that is up to your interpretation based on your intention and the situation currently at hand for you. Good luck.



EIGHT OF SWORDS

RESTRICTION ISOLATION ANXIETY.

Are you trapped or stuck in a difficult situation? There is a feeling of helplessness, like you are being backed into a corner or stuck in the roots of a tree, unable to set yourself free. You are feeling trapped or limited by circumstances beyond your control. There might be heavy or empty feelings present with you; such as anxiety, self-doubt, or a lack of confidence in your abilities to navigate the situation you're in.

This is your call to action. Break free from your mental, emotional, or physical constraints and take steps towards creating a more positive outcome. Although you may feel resistance, seek outside for help. As long as you confront your fears eye-to-eye, you will move forward. Let the light inside of you guide you, it's never left you.

You have more power and agency than you may initially realize. You are capable of overcoming even the most difficult of obstacles. All you need right now is perseverance and determination. It's time to set yourself free of this isolation, or else you're just going to sit in it forever.



NINE OF SWORDS

FEAR ANXIETY WORRY.

This is a time of deep inner turmoil, caused by guilt, regret, or a feeling of helplessness. Look at the way the younger and elder gaze at one another in the card. There is a clear internal battle between the two of them; notice, this could be a sign of the internal battle happening inside of you.

If you are taking on excessive negative self-talk, overthinking, or a tendency to catastrophize, you need to stop it now. The fears depicted in this card are often imagined and exaggerated. It's possible to overcome them through self-reflection and positive affirmations. Realize that you are far greater and more powerful than you may believe.

Quiet your mind and examine the root of your fears. Receive support from a loved one while practising selfcompassion as you work through your anxieties. Give yourself the space to release these worries and all else that's been holding you back. You know who you are, and these limitations are not who you are.



TEN OF SWORDS

ENDINGS
PAIN
TRANSFORMATION.

Congratulations! You've finally made it to the end of a difficult or painful situation. Take this as a message indicating the finality of a painful experience. You have hit rock bottom already and are potentially feeling quite overwhelmed because of this. But, don't worry. The war is over.

Your transformation has been conceived, and you are about to be set free. Something has to end in order for something new to begin. It might be painful, but it's only temporary. The light is above you, waiting for you to move forward and rise.

Let go of the past and start anew. Just accept the situation and be willing to move on, even (and especially) if it requires leaving something behind. While it may seem like you are living in a dark cloud in the depths of the sea, there is immense hope that healing and recovery are possible... now.



PAGE OF SWORDS

CURIOSITY ALERTNESS HONESTY.

You are analytical, logical, and skilled in communication. Yet, you have another quality that keeps you engaged, wanting to know more. As you approach situations, you do so with a curious and questioning mind, seeking answers and truth. You are like a curious child, always asking the question, "Why?"

Perhaps you are inclined to approach things from a rational perspective, relying on facts and logic rather than intuition or emotions. Be careful, as you may need to be on guard against potential deception or deceit, either from others or from yourself.

As long as you remain open to new perspectives, your desire for freedom and independence will arrive. Make it happen.



KNIGHT OF SWORDS

ACTION
INTELLIGENCE
DECISION-MAKING.

You're ready to take charge and act on your decisions. You are impulsive and may act without considering the consequences of your actions. Really consider this. You must make a quick choice and move forward with conviction. Make sure you are sure of your choice, otherwise things might not turn out the way you want them to. In fact, they could turn out the complete opposite.

Find the balance to make a healthy decision. Although fast action is needed, it's important to take the time necessary for reflection and self-understanding. You may need to take a step back to see the bigger picture. It may be of great benefit for you to consider taking a more holistic approach to problem-solving (right now, and in general).

You are encouraged to be decisive and confident as you use your intelligence to make the best possible choices.



QUEEN OF SWORDS

STRENGTH INDEPENDENCE INTELLIGENCE.

Your mind is sharp and you make wise decisions. Maybe you're great at analytical research or simply phenomenal at following your intuition. You have power and authority, perhaps over others, but certainly over yourself. Embrace your intellect and make decisions based on logic and reason rather than emotions. Once your decisions are clear, communicate your desires and needs clearly in all your relationships.

Stay honest to your truth, as this will help you to release what no longer serves you, including all values, beliefs, and patterns that may be holding you back from letting the clarity of your truth guide you.

You are strong, wise, and intelligent. Remember that. Believe in yourself and be confident in the path you choose to take. You get to write the book of your life. Make it one you're happy about.

7

KING OF SWORDS

INTELLIGENCE OBJECTIVITY AUTHORITY.

You are a master, a natural leader, and it's in your highest alignment to make choices based on understanding and fairness. Feel into what your gut is telling you. Notice the flames in this card. There are flames at the base of this King's body, rooting him to truthful intelligence. There is a single flame in the centre of his gut, his intuitive centre.

This is where you will find the authority within yourself as the knower. When you do this, this is something others deeply appreciate about you and something you should deeply appreciate about yourself, especially when it comes from the truth of your heart.

Assert yourself as the leader that you are, as you lead with integrity and impartiality. Be sure not to let your emotions lead you astray. They are helpful for reflection and insight, but this is not the time to let your emotions make decisions

for you. Let the intelligence of your authority come from an aligned and pure mind and heart.

Move forward with a clarity, and you will move in the direction you wish to walk in.

PENTACLES



ACE OF PENTACLES

New Beginnings Prosperity Abundance.

The world is in the palm of your hands, everything you could ever want is right here, waiting for you to see it, feel it, and receive it. There is a new opportunity or venture in your field that has the potential to bring great stability and success. This could be through the possession of material things, or it could be much grander than that.

You are in a position to plant a seed of growth. You must be sure to watch and nourish it as it flourishes over time. It's okay if you don't know what it is you want to receive specifically, as long as you are connected to the feeling and experience you want to have, all else will fall into place.

This would be a great time to really focus on practical matters, such as finances and career, and embark on the action necessary. You can't just wish for something and receive it (most of the time), you must take some sort of

aligned action. Just make sure that this action feels genuinely good in your body. Remember that, with hard work, dedication, and perseverance, you can create a solid foundation for long-term success and security.

This is only the beginning. Enjoy it to the fullest.



TWO OF PENTACLES

BALANCE
ADAPTABILITY
JUGGLING MULTIPLE
RESPONSIBILITIES.

Are you juggling a lot right now? You may have quite a bit on your hands, but it's okay because, wow, is it ever bright! In order to receive the fruits of what's to come, there is a need for flexibility and a willingness to adjust to changing circumstances in order to maintain a strong sense of equilibrium.

Manage your time and resources wisely. Look at the bigger picture and the knowledge of where you need to place your energy will become clear. Balance whatever competing demands are asking for your attention so that you can adapt and juggle all of your responsibilities effortlessly, with grace and ease.

Believe in yourself and the fact that you will make it all work. Because you will. Even in the midst of all of this

chaos, you have the power to stay grounded and centred within yourself. Simply navigate life's ups and downs with adaptability.

You can do this... promise.



THREE OF PENTACLES

COLLABORATION
TEAMWORK
SKILLED
CRAFTSMANSHIP

There is magic in a team coming together to create something, especially when everyone has an aligned vision and sense of ambition. Magnificence is guaranteed to come from this.

You're working on an essential project or are needed to observe and offer feedback on a project of someone in your community or field. Whatever it may be, your presence is essential.

When people work together towards a common goal, whether in a personal or professional setting, success can be more easily achieved. All you need is to combine

individual talents and expertise to create something greater than the sum of its parts.

Notice if there is a need for more open communication and the willingness to accept constructive criticism in order to improve and refine the work you are dedicating your time and energy to. If you do this, you will be thrilled with the magnificence of the result.



FOUR OF PENTACLES

STABILITY
SECURITY
POSSESSION.

Do you have a sense of possessiveness over a person, project, belief, or habit? Do you have the unwillingness to let go of material possessions or financial security? This is a time for you to surrender and ground yourself into a sense of stability and security without possession.

Notice the abundance that rests before you and witness it with gratitude. There is no need for you to let it melt away, however, you're holding onto something from a place of greed. If that's the case, there is a chance it could have better use in the hands of another.

Step into the energy of stability. However, be careful you don't become too possessive or rigid in your approach with life. Find that perfect balance between control and surrender, and that's what will set you free so that you can live a life of complete grounded stability.

Now is a time for you to discover a balance between material security and emotional fulfilment.



FIVE OF PENTACLES

HARDSHIP ISOLATION ABANDONMENT

Life may be feeling a bit dark for you at the moment. Something may have happened that caused a bit of turmoil, or it's about to if it hasn't happened yet. Make sure that you are dressed and ready for the occasion.

This card is often a representation of financial difficulties. Naturally, this tends to lead you to feeling a sense of isolation or abandonment by something or someone, perhaps that someone is yourself. Is it?

While there may be a source of help nearby, there is a likely chance that you are too focused on your problems to see it or access it. Take this message as an invitation and firm guidance to seek support and resources. Swallow your pride, as this could mean admitting vulnerability and reaching out for help.

Listen to your needs and follow through with honouring them; receiving the support from others as necessary.



SIX OF PENTACLES

GENEROSITY CHARITY SHARING.

You are in the epicentre of light, love, and abundance. Ensure you are giving and receiving in a balanced and fair way that works for you... and for the other. Notice if this is a time when you need to open and accept, or serve and share. There is a need right now to receive or offer help, support, or resources. Which side of the coin are you currently on? Or, how are you able to amplify both?

There is a need for symmetry and harmony in your life, an essential flow; especially as it pertains to finances and relationships. Be generous with your time, money, or energy, or you may need to ask for help when you require it. Do whatever is the need at this time. Giving and receiving are interconnected, and by sharing our resources, we create a more harmonious and abundant world.

Isn't that the kind of world you'd love to live in?



SEVEN OF PENTACLES

HARD WORK
PATIENCE
PERSEVERANCE.

You are at the precipice of experiencing the fruits of your labour if you haven't already. You've placed a lot of time and effort into your work, and the result of the investment is about to present itself to you, perhaps in a way far grander than you could've imagined. Look at the ground behind the person in this photo, and the vast opportunity that rests before their eyes. You have just as much beauty and richness, patiently waiting for you to fully arrive.

You're finding that as you look forward, there is so much out there. There are endless opportunities and wishes for things to work out. They will, and they already are. Just keep looking forward and have belief in yourself and faith in your diligence.

It will be helpful for you to take stock of your progress, reflect on your achievements, and choose the steps you need to take next. Be patient and persistent. Trust the process and continue to work towards your goals. If the progress seems slow or uncertain at times, know that there is a lot happening you may not necessarily visually see. Alongside perseverance and equanimity, you will end up where you are aiming to go.



EIGHT OF PENTACLES

DEDICATION
COMMITMENT
CRAFTSMANSHIP.

There is a particular skill, craft, or project you are feeling really excited about. Every single little detail needs your attention and presence; and you are succeeding at this. Notice if there are any more fine details needing your attention and potentially passing your awareness right now. Like the gentleman in the card, notice every crevice in your creation, ensuring you aren't missing a thing to make it as magnificent as it deserves to be.

This is a time of focus and concentration, don't treat anything you are doing like it doesn't matter. It all matters, and it matters wildly. You know when you are engaged fully in this area because everything around you starts to go quiet at that moment. Look at the card again. Notice the space this gentleman sits. He's engaged, his work lighting up his face and heart, and his surroundings are calm and peaceful, almost disappearing from his awareness all together because he is so focused on what it is he's creating.

If you aren't already, this is a message for you to look closer, stay engaged, and keep an open heart. You will witness the magic of your dedication soon enough.



NINE OF PENTACLES

MATERIAL COMFORT SELF-SUFFICIENCY.

You have achieved a certain level of financial success, and you are now able to enjoy all you've cultivated. You have worked hard for a long time to attain your current level of prosperity, and now you are reaping the benefits of it. Everything you've been dreaming of is surrounding you. If you don't see it, open your eyes a little wider. Allow yourself to be inspired by the look of amazement of the being in this card. They witness the beauty in comfort and materiality.

You are independent, confident, and self-sufficient. You have a strong sense of who you are and what you want in life. You are not afraid to pursue your goals and take risks. Keep doing this, it's brought you so far already.

Appreciate the simple pleasures in life, such as spending time in nature, enjoying creative pursuits, and nurturing your relationships with family and friends. Consistent practices of gratitude for all the magic that surrounds you will be what makes you strong in self-sufficiency.

TEN OF PENTACLES



WEALTH
STABILITY
SECURITY.

You have wealth in your material world, with the sun always doing what it needs to pierce through and shine its rays of abundance on you. Whether or not you actually feel abundant right now, you really do have reason to. Open your eyes wide if you don't see it already. Witness this abundance for what it is: real.

You are surrounded by safety, all of your security needs are met. You are in a safe place, spending time on things you love, and nothing could stop you from having a little dance party with your closest loved ones (physical or beyond). In fact, this could be the simple act you may need to feel connected to every single droplet of abundance that exists in your present moment.

If you find your self feeling uneasy, just remember that you are safe, beauty surrounds you, and everyone in your close

field is coming together to create a prosperous and secure environment. If you don't see this as true, expand your perception just a little bit more, because it is.



PAGE OF PENTACLES

PRACTICAL RESPONSIBLE GROUNDED.

Consider this to be a new beginning or fresh start in terms of finances, career, or education. Take a practical approach and stay clear of the objectives required to tackle along the way. Be diligent and responsible, or else your goals could easily slip through your fingers.

Know where you are going. You may have a clear vision, or you may simply know how you want to feel. Whatever it may be, know the steps that are required to take you there. This could be reflected upon at the start of each day or evening, or at the start of a week, month, or year. Know what will work best for you right now, and you will move forward naturally. The path will become clearer as you do.

By focusing on the present moment and paying close attention to details, you can lay the foundation for long-term success and prosperity.



KNIGHT OF PENTACLES

DILIGENCE RELIABILITY PRACTICALITY.

You are dependable and responsible. You take a methodical and practical approach to achieving your goals. You are not easily distracted, and you are willing to put in the hard work and effort required. However, this card can also indicate a tendency towards caution and a reluctance to take risks. While being practical and reliable is admirable, sometimes taking a chance is necessary for growth and progress.

Know when it's time for you to take the leap, and when it's time for you to take a deep breath before you do so. You may need to take a step forward into an unknown abyss. If you choose to do so, believe that the outcome will be exactly what you need.

Find the balance between practicality and stepping outside your comfort zone to achieve what truly is in alignment. With this balance present, be diligent in your execution.



QUEEN OF PENTACLES

PRACTICALITY ABUNDANCE NURTURING.

This is a symbol of wealth, success, and financial security. Right now, you are radiating the energy of a down-to-earth character and have the ability to create a comfortable and stable home environment anywhere you are. You are nurturing, often taking care of others and making sure their needs are met. You are practical and efficient. You can manage your resources wisely and make smart prosperity decisions. Abundance radiates all through you and from within you.

It's likely that you are feeling grounded and secure in your finances and home life; if you're not, this is your permission slip. There are feelings of both gratitude and contentment present with you. Can you turn up the volume of all of this and witness even more all that it is you have to offer?

Abundance, quite literally, radiates from deep within you and lights up the surrounding shadows. Just be sure to take care of yourself, as this is vital while continuing on the path of embodying and receiving the prosperity that you deserve and desire.

You are abundance itself. There is no separation.



KING OF PENTACLES

MATURITY RELIABILITY AMBITION.

You sit with presence and ambition, proud of all the moments you've experienced and excited for the ones about to come. You are mature, reliable, and practical and because of this, you are someone that others can trust. You gain success through dedicated work and keeping your intention in your mind. You are responsible, ambitious, and driven by a desire for financial freedom and material comfort.

You have strong elements of wealth, prosperity, and abundance in your life at the moment. This indicates success in business, finance, or practical endeavours. Whatever it is, you are a master of this domain and have a deep understanding of the value of hard work and dedication.

Notice if you have a need to focus on practical matters, such as financial planning, investment, and long-term stability. It's important to take charge of your life and pursue your goals with determination and focus.

SPECIAL CARDS



THE PHOENIX

Transformation, Resilience, Rebirth

This is a very special card you picked up today, so pay attention because it is a blessing and a very strong message.

No matter how difficult or challenging life may be, you have the strength to rise from the ashes and be born anew. This is your time to liberate into renewal. Just as the Phoenix emerges from the flames, you can overcome what may have been holding you down and soar to new heights. Endings are never permanent. Every ending is a new beginning. Strength and beauty are on your side. You are in the process of liberation. In many ways, you're already there.



THE CELESTIAL WEAVER

Power,
Manifestation,
Interconnectedness

Here is a power card for you today, this is a message for you to fully allow to sink in

Weave the fabric of your reality through your thoughts, intentions, and actions. Every thread you weave has a ripple effect in the universe. Be mindful of your thoughts and intentions, they are what shall create a beautiful tapestry of life. You are part of a greater cosmic dance. Your existence is meaningful and interconnected with all that is; all part of the unifying field of consciousness. You are the weaver of your destiny, and with each movement you make, weave love, kindness, and harmony into the world around you. Remember, it's natural for you.

We Have a free Meditation for You

Scan the QR Code to receive the meditation in your email







